
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
 
 

810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203 
Vacaville, California 95688 
Phone (707) 451-6090  FAX (707) 451-6099 
www.scwa2.com 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 
 
DATE: Thursday, May 12, 2016 
   

                         TIME:              6:30 – 7:00  p.m. (Note: City County  
  Coordinating Council is meeting at 7:00) 

 
PLACE: Berryessa Room 
  Solano County Water Agency Office 
  810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203 
  Vacaville 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 Limited to 5 minutes for any one item not scheduled on the Agenda. 

 
5. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

 (A)  Minutes:  Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors 
meeting of March 10, 2016 is recommended. 

 
(B)       Expenditure Approvals:  Approval of the March checking 
account register is recommended.   
 

    (C)  Dixon Redevelopment – Sale of Union Pacific Railroad  
    and Old Dixon Lumber Yard Site: Authorize Chairwoman to execute  
    an agreement with the City of Dixon concurring with the sale of  
    Union Pacific Railroad and Old Dixon Lumber Yard Site to the City  
    of Dixon.  
  
   6. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS   

  
    RECOMMENDATION:  For information only. 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
Chair: 
Supervisor Erin Hannigan 
Solano County District 1 
 
Vice Chair: 
Mayor Pete Sanchez 
City of Suisun City 
 
Mayor Len Augustine 
City of Vacaville 
 
Mayor Jack Batchelor 
City of Dixon 
 
Director Dale Crossley 
Reclamation District No. 2068 
 
Mayor Osby Davis  
City of Vallejo 
 
Director John D. Kluge 
Solano Irrigation District 
 
Director Ryan Mahoney  
Maine Prairie Water District 
 
Mayor Elizabeth Patterson 
City of Benicia 
 
Mayor Harry Price 
City of Fairfield 
 
Mayor Norm Richardson 
City of Rio Vista 
 
Supervisor Linda Seifert 
Solano County District 2 
 
Supervisor Jim Spering  
Solano County District 3 
 
Supervisor Skip Thomson 
Solano County District 5 
 
Supervisor John Vasquez 
Solano County District 4 
 
 
GENERAL MANAGER: 
 
Roland Sanford 
Solano County Water Agency 
 
 
 
 



Board of Directors Meeting Page 2 
Agenda – May 12, 2016 
 
 
7.         GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  For information only. 
 
8. CONDITIONAL LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR YOLO COUNTY FLOOD 

CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT’S PROPOSED 
GROUNDWATER BASIN BOUNDARY MODIFICATION FOR THE SOLANO 
SUBBASIN 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize General Manager to sign conditional letter of support 
for Yolo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District’s proposed groundwater 
Basin Boundary Modification for the Solano Subbasin. 

 
9. WATER POLICY UPDATES 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
1. Hear report from staff on current and emerging Delta and Water Policy issues and 

provide direction. 
 

2. Hear status report from Committee Chair Supervisor Seifert on activities of the SCWA 
Water Policy Committee. 

 
3. Hear report from Supervisor Thomson on activities of the Delta Counties Coalition and 

Delta Protection Commission. 
 

4. Hear report from Legislative Committee. 
 
10. TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING 
  

Thursday, June 9, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. at the SCWA offices.  
 

The Full Board of Directors packet with background materials for each agenda 
item can be viewed on the Agency’s website at www.scwa2.com.  

 
Any materials related to items on this agenda distributed to the Board of Directors of Solano County Water Agency less than 72 hours before the 
public meeting are available for public inspection at the Agency’s offices located at the following address: 810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203, 
Vacaville, CA 95688.  Upon request, these materials may be made available in an alternative format to persons with disabilities. 
 
May.2016.bod.agd 

http://www.scwa2.com/


 
CONSENT ITEMS 



 SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
 

MEETING DATE: April 14, 2016 
 
The Solano County Water Agency Board of Directors met this evening at the Solano County Water 
Agency.  Present were: 

 
  Supervisor Erin Hannigan, Solano County District 1 

  Supervisor Linda Seifert, Solano County District 2 
 Supervisor James Spering, Solano County District 3 
  Supervisor John Vasquez, Solano County District 4 
  Supervisor Skip Thomson, Solano County District 5 
  Mayor Len Augustine, City of Vacaville  
  Mayor Pete Sanchez, City of Suisun City 
  Mayor Elizabeth Patterson, City of Benicia 
  Mayor Jack Batchelor, City of Dixon 
  Mayor Harry Price, City of Fairfield 

  Mayor Osby Davis, City of Vallejo 
  Mayor Norm Richardson, City of Rio Vista 
  Director Glen Grant, Solano Irrigation District 
  Director Dale Crossley, Reclamation District 2068 
  Director Ryan Mahoney, Maine Prairie Water District 

   
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 P.M. by Chair Hannigan.  
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
On a motion by Mayor Patterson and a second by Mayor Batchelor the Board unanimously 
approved the agenda. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no comments. 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 
 

Supervisor Hannigan recommend the proposed credit card policy (Consent Item D) include a clause 
stipulating that in the event a personal purchase is made with a Water Agency issued credit card, the 
card holder be required to reimburse the Water Agency for the personal purchase within a specified 
time frame.  On a motion by Mayor Batchelor and second by Supervisor Siefert the Board 
unanimously approved, with the inclusion of the recommended revision to the proposed credit card 
policy (Consent Item D), the following Consent Items: 
 

(A) Minutes 
(B) Expenditure Approvals  
(C) Quarterly Financial Reports  
(D) SCWA Credit Card Policy  
(E) Ulatis Project Easement Variance: Pipeline Agreement Termination 
(F) Purchase Orders for Putah Diversion Office aggregate base 
(G) Contract Amendment for Monitoring System Support Services 
(H) Wood Grindings Purchase Order for the LPCCC River Parkway Project 
(I) Repair Purchase Order for the LPCCC Tub Grinder 

 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

 
Mayor Patterson reported that a lawsuit has been filed in opposition to the Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California’s (MET) recent purchase of five islands in the Sacramento-San 



SCWA Board Meeting 
Minutes – April 14, 2016 Page 2 

Joaquin Delta.  She explained that the lawsuit seeks to invalidate the property purchase because 
MET has so far failed to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
There were no additions to the General Managers written report.  
 

PRESENTATION BY EKI – RESULTS OF SCWA SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
WATER USE AND CONSERVATION POTENTIAL PILOT STUDY 

 
Representatives from EKI, a private consulting firm, presented the results of their recent water 
conservation study, in which they evaluated the effectiveness of the Water Agency’s various 
water conservation rebate programs.  The study, which relied heavily on data provided by the 
City of Vallejo, concluded that significant water savings have been achieved through the various 
water conservation programs administered by the Water Agency, and that the potential exists for 
additional water savings. The Board thanked the EKI representatives for their informational 
presentation. 
 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  WATER POLICY COMMITTEE 
 RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING FORMATION OF GROUNDWATER 

 SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY (GSA) FOR SOLANO SUBBASIN 
 

After extended discussion, on a motion by Supervisor Seifert and second by Mayor Patterson, the 
Board voted to accept and endorse the following recommendations of the Water Policy Committee: 
 

1. A GSA “Working Group” be formed, independent of the SCWA Water Policy 
Committee, consisting of one member from each GSA eligible entity in the Solano 
Subbasin and one member of the Dixon Resources Conservation District, a member of 
the Solano County Agricultural Advisory Committee, and a member of the Solano 
County Farm Bureau, to develop one or more GSA governance structures for the Solano 
Subbasin, and to bring forward recommendations for approval to the SCWA Board. 

 
2. The SCWA Board authorize staff to provide administrative support for the GSA 

“Working Group” 
 

Mayor Augustine, Mayor Batchelor and Supervisor Vasquez voted no, Supervisor Thompson 
abstained. 
 
Following the vote to accept and endorse the recommendations of the Water Policy Committee, the 
Board requested GSA Working Group members provide timely updates on the GSA Working 
Group’s activities and progress to their respective governing bodies. 
 

ADOPTION OF YOLO BYPASS AND CACHE SLOUGH PARTNERSHIP 
 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
On a motion by Mayor Batchelor and second by Supervisor Vasquez the Board authorized 
Supervisor Thompson to sign the Yolo Bypass and Cache Slough Partnership Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Water Agency, and to represent the Water Agency, along with 
Mayor Richardson and Supervisor Vasquez, at the May 4, 2016 Yolo Bypass and Cache Slough 
Partnership Memorandum of Understanding signing ceremony to be held at the Crocker Art 
Museum in Sacramento.  
 

WATER AGENCY STAFFING 
 
On a motion by Supervisor Spering and a second by Mayor Patterson the Board unanimously 
approved two new positions; an Assistant Water Resource Specialist, and an Accountant I; and 
authorized staff to begin recruiting for both positions.  

 
WATER POLICY UPDATES 

 
1. There was no report from staff on current and emerging Delta and Water Policy issues. 
2. There was no report on activities of the SCWA Water Policy Committee.  



SCWA Board Meeting 
Minutes – April 14, 2016 Page 3 

3. There was no report on activities of the Delta Counties Coalition and Delta Protection 
Commission.  

4. There was no report from the Legislative Committee.  
 

TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting will be Thursday, May 12, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. in the 
Berryessa Room located at the Solano County Water Agency offices.  
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
This meeting of the Solano County Water Agency Board of Directors was adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 
 
     CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board of Directors entered into closed session at 7:55 p.m. and returned to open session at 8:32 
p.m.  There were no reportable actions taken in closed session.  
 

 
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 

       Roland Sanford 
       General Manager & Secretary to the 
       Solano County Water Agency 

 
Apr.2016.BOD.min   A-16 





5/5/16 at 08:31:29.59 Page: 1
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/5/16 27775V 2020U Invoice: JANUARY 4-22 1,289.30
1020SC CRAIG D. THOMSEN 1,289.30

4/7/16 27993 2020SC Invoice: 177937 34.00
1020SC A & L WESTERN AGRICULTURAL LABS 34.00

4/7/16 27994 2020SC Invoice: 01.01.16 - 03.31.16 3,671.55
1020SC ASSACWA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORIT 3,671.55

4/7/16 27995 2020SC Invoice: 2153371 534.63
1020SC AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION 534.63

4/7/16 27996 2020SC Invoice: A606218 1,775.00
2020SC Invoice: A606216 2,430.00
2020SC Invoice: A606844 650.00
1020SC BSK ASSOCIATES 4,855.00

4/7/16 27997 2020SC Invoice: 3.23.16 FINAL BILL 1.72
1020SC AT&T MOBILITY 1.72

4/7/16 27998 2020SC Invoice: APRIL 2016 8,500.00
1020SC CLEAN TECH ADVOCATES 8,500.00

4/7/16 27999 2020SC Invoice: 20125 43.68
2020SC Invoice: 20775 112.86
1020SC DIXON HARDWARE & LUMBER 156.54

4/7/16 28000 2020SC Invoice: 17071010-7 192.64
2020SC Invoice: 17112794-7 192.64
1020SC EXPRESS EMPLOYEMENT PROFESSIONALS 385.28

4/7/16 28001 2020SC Invoice: 3958 25,368.13
1020SC EYASCO, INC. 25,368.13

4/7/16 28002 2020SC Invoice: 61164 1,005.50
2020SC Invoice: 61163 9,841.87
1020SC GHD, INC. 10,847.37

4/7/16 28003 2020SC Invoice: 3-(16) 880.00
1020SC DENNIS GRUNSTAD 880.00

4/7/16 28004 2020SC Invoice: 9022832 268.54
2020SC Invoice: 6014506 107.54
2020SC Invoice: 7022979 27.62
2020SC Invoice: 2014987 38.74
2020SC Invoice: 2014925 165.40
2020SC Invoice: 8015415 303.09
2020SC Invoice: 8015416 192.02
2020SC Invoice: 3024301 188.48
2020SC Invoice: 2024409 292.64
2020SC Invoice: 6016807 96.44
2020SC Invoice: 7024917 494.96
1020SC HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE 2,175.47

4/7/16 28004V 2020SC Invoice: 9022832 268.54
2020SC Invoice: 6014506 107.54
2020SC Invoice: 7022979 27.62
2020SC Invoice: 2014987 38.74
2020SC Invoice: 2014925 165.40
2020SC Invoice: 8015415 303.09
2020SC Invoice: 8015416 192.02
2020SC Invoice: 3024301 188.48
2020SC Invoice: 2024409 292.64
2020SC Invoice: 6016807 96.44
2020SC Invoice: 7024917 494.96
1020SC HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE 2,175.47

4/7/16 28005 2020SC Invoice: 72764 6,355.00
2020SC Invoice: 72763 875.00
1020SC INTEGRATED ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION 7,230.00

4/7/16 28006 2020N Invoice: 0416-1 600.00
1020SC JEFFREY J JANIK 600.00

4/7/16 28007 2020SC Invoice: 1958 240.00
1020SC NORTHWEST PALLETS 240.00



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.61 Page: 2
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/7/16 28008 2020SC Invoice: 705491 197.66
2020SC Invoice: 706464 122.22
2020SC Invoice: 707140 99.87
2020SC Invoice: 707323 48.97
2020SC Invoice: 707250 36.82
1020SC PISANIS AUTO PARTS 505.54

4/7/16 28009 2020SC Invoice: 1139 2,250.00
1020SC ROCK STEADY JUGGLING 2,250.00

4/7/16 28010 2020SC Invoice: 0331160228 5,073.75
1020SC SHANDAM CONSULTING 5,073.75

4/7/16 28011 2020SC Invoice: MARCH 2016 3,520.00
1020SC ROBERT SMITH 3,520.00

4/7/16 28012 2020U Invoice: MARCH 2016 399.54
1020SC SOLANO COUNTY FLEET MANAGEMENT 399.54

4/7/16 28013 2020U Invoice: JANUARY 4-22 1,289.30
2020U Invoice: FEBRUARY 24-26 1,386.40
1020SC CRAIG D. THOMSEN 2,675.70

4/7/16 28014 2020SC Invoice: REFUND PY POWER 55,398.75
1020SC CITY OF VALLEJO 55,398.75

4/7/16 28014V 2020SC Invoice: REFUND PY POWER 55,398.75
1020SC CITY OF VALLEJO 55,398.75

4/7/16 28015 2020SC Invoice: 598797 66.28
2020N Invoice: 598793 1,201.00
2020SC Invoice: 598364 77.41
2020SC Invoice: 598356 957.85
1020SC VALLEY TRUCK & TRACTOR CO. 2,302.54

4/7/16 28016 2020SC Invoice: PROGRESS PAYMENT 9 10,687.50
1020SC ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING, CO. 10,687.50

4/7/16 28016V 2020SC Invoice: PROGRESS PAYMENT 9 10,687.50
1020SC ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING, CO. 10,687.50

4/7/16 28017 2020SC Invoice: PROGRESS PAYMENT 9 10,687.50
1020SC ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING, CO. 10,687.50

4/7/16 28017V 2020SC Invoice: PROGRESS PAYMENT 9 10,687.50
1020SC ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING, CO. 10,687.50

4/7/16 28018 2020SC Invoice: PROGRESS PAYMENT 9 10,687.50
1020SC ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING, CO. 10,687.50

4/7/16 28019 2020SC Invoice: REFUND PY POWER 55,398.75
1020SC CITY OF VALLEJO 55,398.75

4/7/16 28020 2020SC Invoice: 9022832 268.54
2020SC Invoice: 6014506 107.54
2020SC Invoice: 7022979 27.62
2020SC Invoice: 8015415 303.09
2020SC Invoice: 2014925 165.40
2020SC Invoice: 2014987 38.74
2020SC Invoice: 8015416 192.02
2020SC Invoice: 3024301 188.48
2020SC Invoice: 2024409 292.64
2020SC Invoice: 6016807 96.44
2020SC Invoice: 6016808 95.69
2020SC Invoice: 7024917 494.96
1020SC HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE 2,271.16

4/7/16 28021 2020SC Invoice: DWR #12 169,185.36
1020SC ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 169,185.36

4/7/16 28022 2020SC Invoice: PROP84 DWR#12 66,266.56
1020SC BAY AREA WATER SUPPLY & 66,266.56

4/7/16 28023 2020SC Invoice: DWR#12 79,382.27
1020SC CITY OF NAPA WATER DIVISION 79,382.27



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.64 Page: 3
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/7/16 28024 2020SC Invoice: DWR#12 121,838.83
1020SC CONTRA COSTA WATER DISTRICT 121,838.83

4/7/16 28025 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT DWR#12 92,222.44
1020SC EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST. 92,222.44

4/7/16 28026 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT #12 159,135.81
1020SC MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 159,135.81

4/7/16 28027 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT DWR#12 32,541.76
1020SC NAPA COUNTY FC&WCD 32,541.76

4/7/16 28028 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT DWR#12 189,916.87
1020SC SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 189,916.87

4/7/16 28029 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT DWR#12 116,889.90
1020SC SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMM. 116,889.90

4/7/16 28030 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT DWR#12 191,266.57
1020SC SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 191,266.57

4/7/16 28031 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT DWR #12 19,568.79
1020SC ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT

AUTHORI
19,568.79

4/7/16 28032 2020SC Invoice: PROP84GRANT DWR#12 128,189.52
1020SC ZONE 7 WATER AGENCY 128,189.52

4/8/16 28033 2020SC Invoice: ULATIS QUITCLAIM 29.00
1020SC SOLANO COUNTY ASSESSOR/RECORDER 29.00

4/13/16 28034 2020SC Invoice: 2205 9,045.73
1020SC AG INNOVATIONS 9,045.73

4/13/16 28035 2020SC Invoice: 9041996 110.74
1020SC ARAMARK REFRESHMENT SERVICES 110.74

4/13/16 28036 2020SC Invoice: A606221 650.00
2020SC Invoice: A606842 4,205.00
1020SC BSK ASSOCIATES 4,855.00

4/13/16 28037 2020SC Invoice: 80550964/4 26,445.09
1020SC CDM SMITH 26,445.09

4/13/16 28038 2020SC Invoice: 16669 2,417.65
1020SC CENTRAL VALLEY EQUIPMENT REPAIR 2,417.65

4/13/16 28039 2020SC Invoice: 930073 242.17
1020SC CENTRAL AUTO PARTS 242.17

4/13/16 28040 2020SC Invoice: B50067.00-08 137.80
1020SC ERLER & KALINOWSKI 137.80

4/13/16 28041 2020SC Invoice: 80399 948.60
2020N Invoice: 80398 170.85
1020SC HERUM \ CRABTREE \ SUNTAG 1,119.45

4/13/16 28042 2020SC Invoice: CL16098 363.82
1020SC INTERSTATE OIL COMPANY 363.82

4/13/16 28043 2020SC Invoice: 4.2.16 GRAPHICRECORD 500.00
1020SC LISTEN-INK 500.00

4/13/16 28044 2020SC Invoice: 484591 128.00
1020SC M&M SANITARY LLC 128.00

4/13/16 28045 2020SC Invoice: 201144 13.95
2020SC Invoice: 201330 29.35
2020SC Invoice: 201866 30.07
2020SC Invoice: 901026 56.73
2020SC Invoice: 201964 64.47
2020SC Invoice: 202043 89.18
2020SC Invoice: 902435 27.89
2020SC Invoice: 903085 35.21
1020SC PACIFIC ACE HARDWARE 346.85



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.65 Page: 4
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/13/16 28046 2020SC Invoice: 4672941 142.97
1020SC QUILL CORPORATION 142.97

4/13/16 28047 2020SC Invoice: 39402995 136.63
1020SC RECOLOGY VACAVILLE SOLANO 136.63

4/13/16 28048 2020SC Invoice: 0004347 158,001.85
1020SC SOLANO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 158,001.85

4/13/16 28049 2020SC Invoice: 283354 19.72
2020SC Invoice: 283556 45.82
1020SC SUISUN VALLEY FRUIT GROWERS AS 65.54

4/13/16 28050 2020SC Invoice: 107277 35.49
2020SC Invoice: 208092 21.49
2020SC Invoice: 108015 4.29
1020SC TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN 61.27

4/13/16 28051 2020SC Invoice: 201.07 201.07
1020SC THE TREMONT GROUP, INC. 201.07

4/13/16 28052 2020SC Invoice: 32462 200.00
1020SC VISION TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, LLC DBC 200.00

4/13/16 28053 2020SC Invoice: 269 195.00
1020SC WINTERS AGGREGATE, LLC 195.00

4/13/16 28054 2020SC Invoice: 0004351 19,524.19
1020SC SOLANO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 19,524.19

4/21/16 28055 2020SC Invoice: 178141 34.00
1020SC A & L WESTERN AGRICULTURAL LABS 34.00

4/21/16 28056 2020SC Invoice: 0407613 1,564.29
1020SC ACWA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 1,564.29

4/21/16 28057 2020SC Invoice: 4030955 6,621.04
1020SC CH2M HILL 6,621.04

4/21/16 28058 2020SC Invoice: 17148705-1 192.64
1020SC EXPRESS EMPLOYEMENT PROFESSIONALS 192.64

4/21/16 28059 2020SC Invoice: 31661 1,064.50
1020SC LUHDORFF & SCALMANINI 1,064.50

4/21/16 28060 2020SC Invoice: 24.02-1 9,597.54
1020SC MCCORD ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. 9,597.54

4/21/16 28061 2020SC Invoice: 0007527063-7 8,580.00
1020SC PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO, 8,580.00

4/21/16 28062 2020SC Invoice: 5443 14,093.39
2020SC Invoice: 5421 645.00
1020SC RED BARN EQUIPMENT SALES, INC. 14,738.39

4/21/16 28063 2020SC Invoice: 002841 85.11
1020SC SAM'S CLUB 85.11

4/21/16 28064 2020SC Invoice: 0004349 221.66
2020SC Invoice: 0004348 14,360.01
1020SC SOLANO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 14,581.67

4/21/16 28065 2020N Invoice: 822 400.00
1020SC STUMPY TRUCKING, INC. 400.00

4/21/16 28066 2020SC Invoice: 6753 23,410.00
1020SC OLD DURHAM WOOD 23,410.00

4/21/16 28067 2020SC Invoice: C&C PROPERTY MGMT 5,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 5,000.00

4/22/16 28068 2020SC Invoice: MALANIE PALMER 946.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 946.00

4/22/16 28069 2020SC Invoice: BOB TAI 1,000.00



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.68 Page: 5
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/22/16 28070 2020SC Invoice: RAHUL MANEK 744.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 744.00

4/22/16 28071 2020SC Invoice: RITA HERNANDEZ 736.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 736.00

4/22/16 28072 2020SC Invoice: SHEILA MORAN 405.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 405.00

4/22/16 28073 2020SC Invoice: CANDYCE FAGERHAUGH 558.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 558.00

4/22/16 28074 2020SC Invoice: MAURICE BEAULIEU 434.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 434.00

4/22/16 28075 2020SC Invoice: DALE MAUS 567.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 567.00

4/22/16 28076 2020SC Invoice: WAH LEONG 495.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 495.00

4/22/16 28077 2020SC Invoice: LAURA NARCISO 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/22/16 28078 2020SC Invoice: AMIR VAEZINIA 996.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 996.00

4/22/16 28079 2020SC Invoice: EUGENE BRUBAKER 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/22/16 28080 2020SC Invoice: SCOTT SEIBEL 501.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 501.00

4/22/16 28080V 2020SC Invoice: SCOTT SEIBEL 501.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 501.00

4/22/16 28081 2020SC Invoice: CHRIS BUSHEY 500.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 500.00

4/22/16 28081V 2020SC Invoice: CHRIS BUSHEY 500.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 500.00

4/22/16 28082 2020SC Invoice: SCOTT SEIBEL 501.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 501.00

4/22/16 28083 2020SC Invoice: CHRIS BUSHEY 500.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 500.00

4/22/16 28084 2020SC Invoice: MYRA MCCANN 515.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 515.00

4/22/16 28085 2020SC Invoice: LAWRENCE BOBB 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/22/16 28086 2020SC Invoice: ANTHONY L. COLEMAN 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/22/16 28087 2020SC Invoice: LISSO DAWSON 605.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 605.00

4/22/16 28088 2020SC Invoice: WILBERT CHARLES 640.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 640.00

4/22/16 28089 2020SC Invoice: CASEY JONES 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/22/16 28090 2020SC Invoice: NANCY FORREST 846.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 846.00

4/22/16 28091 2020SC Invoice: JIM HAMILTON 837.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 837.00

4/22/16 28092 2020SC Invoice: BETH CHEVALIER 360.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 360.00



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.70 Page: 6
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/22/16 28093 2020SC Invoice: MARYANN LITTLEJOHN 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/22/16 28094 2020SC Invoice: THOMAS D. DANIELS 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/26/16 28095 2020SC Invoice: ROBERT MACAULAY 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/26/16 28096 2020SC Invoice: PAUL HERMAN 910.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 910.00

4/26/16 28097 2020SC Invoice: LINDA OLIVA 820.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 820.00

4/26/16 28098 2020SC Invoice: ANTHONY W. TURNER 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/26/16 28099 2020SC Invoice: MYRNA CHODAK 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/26/16 28100 2020SC Invoice: ROBERT GRIMMETT 696.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 696.00

4/26/16 28101 2020SC Invoice: JOHN ALDRIDGE 636.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 636.00

4/26/16 28102 2020SC Invoice: ANDREE MCDANIELS 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/26/16 28103 2020SC Invoice: AUDREY PHILLIPS 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/26/16 28104 2020SC Invoice: IAN CALDWELL 793.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 793.00

4/26/16 28105 2020SC Invoice: GREG ALDRIDGE 936.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 936.00

4/26/16 28106 2020SC Invoice: SANDRA FICKES 472.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 472.00

4/26/16 28107 2020SC Invoice: DONNA KIMES 748.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 748.00

4/26/16 28108 2020SC Invoice: RONIE RONQUILLO 320.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 320.00

4/26/16 28109 2020SC Invoice: DEANNA HULSE 597.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 597.00

4/26/16 28110 2020SC Invoice: MARIA PANTOJA 1,000.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 1,000.00

4/26/16 28111 2020SC Invoice: VERONICA CORNETT 600.00
1020SC TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE 600.00

4/27/16 28112 2020SC Invoice: PROPERTY04/16 - 4/17 5,969.00
1020SC ASSACWA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORIT 5,969.00

4/27/16 28113 2020SC Invoice: 7941396 242.83
2020SC Invoice: 7941395 188.07
1020SC AT&T 430.90

4/27/16 28114 2020SC Invoice: 0076506 4,465.50
1020SC BSK ASSOCIATES 4,465.50

4/27/16 28115 2020SC Invoice: 17175952-5 192.64
1020SC EXPRESS EMPLOYEMENT PROFESSIONALS 192.64

4/27/16 28116 2020SC Invoice: 5-385-61518 437.57
1020SC FEDEX EXPRESS 437.57

4/27/16 28117 2020SC Invoice: 1X113723 103.59
1020SC HORIZON DISTRIBUTORS, INC. 103.59



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.71 Page: 7
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

4/27/16 28118 2020SC Invoice: CL17825 406.86
1020SC INTERSTATE OIL COMPANY 406.86

4/27/16 28119 2020SC Invoice: 1403 4,817.00
1020SC IRON SPRINGS CORPORATION 4,817.00

4/27/16 28120 2020WC Invoice: 16-04-3868 13,875.50
1020SC MBK ENGINEERS 13,875.50

4/27/16 28121 2020SC Invoice: 61834 8,587.16
1020SC NORMANDEAU ASSOCIATES, INC. 8,587.16

4/27/16 28122 2020SC Invoice: 4875660 234.43
2020SC Invoice: 4884709 9.70
1020SC QUILL CORPORATION 244.13

4/27/16 28123 2020SC Invoice: 006492990046MAY2016 1,273.36
1020SC STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 1,273.36

4/27/16 28124 2020SC Invoice: 17054 8,394.52
1020SC SUMMERS ENGINEERING, INC. 8,394.52

4/27/16 28125 2020SC Invoice: SW-0114774 695.00
1020SC SWRCB 695.00

4/27/16 28126 2020SC Invoice: LPCCC-FY2015-16_8 1,987.50
2020SC Invoice: DAVIS-SCWA-MEDIA#1 4,187.68
2020SC Invoice: SCWA-FY2015-16_8 11,002.35
1020SC KEN W. DAVIS, DBA WILDLIFE SURVEY 17,177.53

4/27/16 28127 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BOARD MEET 132.94
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC MAR 2016 116.20
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC APR 2016 116.20
1020SC ELIZABETH PATTERSON 365.34

4/27/16 28128 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BOARD MEET 112.96
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC MAR 2016 25.92
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC APR 2016 125.92
1020SC JACK BATCHELOR 264.80

4/27/16 28129 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BAORD MEET 100.00
1020SC RYAN MAHONEY 100.00

4/27/16 28130 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BOARD MEET 100.00
1020SC MIKE HARDESTY 100.00

4/27/16 28131 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BOARD MEET 100.00
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC MAR 2016 100.00
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC APR 2016 100.00
1020SC LINDA SEIFERT 300.00

4/27/16 28132 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BOARD MEET 100.00
1020SC JAMES SPERING 100.00

4/27/16 28133 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BAORD MEET 100.00
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC MAR 2016 100.00
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC APR 2016 100.00
1020SC JOHN VASQUEZ 300.00

4/27/16 28134 2020SC Invoice: EXEC MEET APR 2016 100.00
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC MAR 2016 116.20
2020SC Invoice: STRATEGIC APR 2016 116.20
1020SC JOHN D. KLUGE 332.40

4/27/16 28135 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BOARD MEET 100.00
1020SC GLEN GRANT 100.00

4/27/16 28136 2020SC Invoice: APR 2016 BOARD MEET 100.00
1020SC OSBY DAVIS 100.00

4/28/16 28137 2020SC Invoice: LAND AQUISITION 2016 100,000.00
1020SC OLD REPUBLIC TITLE COMPANY 100,000.00

4/25/16 BARICH MAR 2016 6360AC PROMETRIC - EXAM FEE 65.00
6360AC PROMETRIC - EXAM FEE 65.00



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.75 Page: 8
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 130.00

4/25/16 CUETARA MAR 2016 6144SC AMAZONPRIME MEMBERSHIP 106.80
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 106.80

4/1/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 2016033001 156.30
1020SC PAYCHEX, INC. 156.30

4/1/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: APR HEALTH 2016 14,297.15
1020SC CALPERS 14,297.15

4/7/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 47133954 211.78
1020SC CHEVRON AND TEXACO 211.78

4/11/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 9762848555 2,369.66
1020SC VERIZON WIRELESS 2,369.66

4/13/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: PPE 4.9.16 7,766.64
1020SC CALPERS 7,766.64

4/13/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: PEPRA PPE 4.9.16 360.11
1020SC CALPERS 360.11

4/13/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: SIP PPE 4.9.16 3,389.53
1020SC CALPERS 3,389.53

4/9/16 EFT 2024AC EMPLOYEE LIABILITIES - 4.9.16 10,119.24
6012AC EMPLOYER LIABILITIES - 4.9.16 1,262.89
1020SC PAYROLL TAXES 11,382.13

4/15/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 2016041301 171.20
1020SC PAYCHEX, INC. 171.20

4/13/16 EFT 6040AC CHECK 27775 STOP PAYMENT 35.00
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST CENTRAL ACCOUNT ANALYS 35.00

4/15/16 EFT 6040AC EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 70.12
6111AC FSA ADMIN FEES - APRIL 106.75
1020SC PAYCHEX, INC. 176.87

4/25/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 03/11/16 - 04/10/16 993.53
1020SC PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC CO, 993.53

4/23/16 EFT 2024AC EMPLOYEE LIABILITIES - 4.23.16 10,973.78
6012AC EMPLOYER LIABILITIES - 4.23.16 1,669.34
1020SC PAYROLL TAXES 12,643.12

4/27/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: SIP PPE 4.32.16 3,389.53
1020SC CALPERS 3,389.53

4/27/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: PPE 4.23.16 7,905.06
1020SC CALPERS 7,905.06

4/27/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: PEPRA PPE 4.23.16 360.11
1020SC CALPERS 360.11

4/28/16 EFT 2020SC Invoice: 2016042701 200.40
1020SC PAYCHEX, INC. 200.40

4/25/16 FLORENDO MAR 2016 6040AC SQ THE PROPER SAND NAPA - LUNCH FOR BAY
FRIENDLY WORKSHOP

469.80

6551AC AMAZON.COM - SUPPLIES 81.93
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 551.73

4/1/16 FRAUD CHARGES 6040AC FRAUD CHARGES TO BE REIMBURSED 32.00
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST CENTRAL ACCOUNT ANALYS 32.00

4/25/16 JONES MAR 2016 6199SC STAPLES - SUPPLIES 54.00
6130SC ZTERS INC - PORTABLE TOILET 216.97
6183SC YOLO COUNTY LANDFILL - DUMP 47.53
6199SC APL* ITUNES.COM - ICLOUD 0.99
6183SC YOLO COUNTY LANDFILL - DUMP 8.00
6183SC YOLO COUNTY LANDFILL - DUMP 22.00
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 349.49

4/25/16 LEE MAR 2016 6330AC SOUTHWEST - FLIGHT TO CONFERENCE 176.96



5/5/16 at 08:31:29.76 Page: 9
SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Cash Disbursements Journal
For the Period From Apr 1, 2016 to Apr 30, 2016

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Number. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Date Check # Account ID Line Description Debit Amount Credit Amount

6330AC PRICELINE RENTAL - HERTZ - RENTAL CAR 73.66
6112AC NAMES4EVER - DOMAIN PACKAGE 35.00
6330AC GRAND SIERRA RSRT&CASINO - HOTEL FOR

CONFERENCE
184.54

6112AC GODADDY.COM - SITELOCK 83.88
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 554.04

4/25/16 MAROVICH MAR 2016 6199SC STAPLES DIRECT - SUPPLIES 59.61
6199SC CBI-WINZIP CLEVERBRIDGE - SOFTWARE 29.95
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 89.56

4/25/16 PATE MAR 2016 2020SC Invoice: PATE MARCH 2016 630.00
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 630.00

4/25/16 PHILLIPS MAR 2016 6040AC NAPOLI PIZZERIA - BOARD MEETING PIZZA 38.18
6041AC AMAZON.COM - COMPUTER BATTERY 73.11
6041AC AMAZON.COM - COMPUTER BATTERY 73.11
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 184.40

4/25/16 RABIDOUX MAR 2016 6161N TARGET - SUPPLIES 38.79
6144N OREILLY AUTO - NEW BATTERY FOR LSHB

STATION
116.49

6161N BEN MEADOWS - SUPPLIES 287.97
6310AC CHEVRON - FUEL 43.50
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 486.75

4/25/16 SANFORD MAR 2016 6330AC CITYOFSAC PARKING 20.00
6210AC ASSOCIATION OF CA - CROSSLEY LEGISLATIVE

SYMPOSIUM REGISTRATION
245.00

6330AC CITYOFSAC PARKING 7.50
6330AC CITY OF SAC PARKING 20.00
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 292.50

4/25/16 SNYDER MAR 2016 6300AC AGILIS LINXUP MOTOSFTY - VEHICLE TRACKING 91.96
5500AC AUTOANYTHING - SEAT COVERS 330.08
5500AC AUTOANYTHING - DASHBOARD COVER 60.40
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 482.44

4/25/16 WILLINGMYRE MAR 2016 6040AC TARGET - SODA 38.13
6040AC REMOTELINK - EXECUTIVE MEETING 18.89
6040AC SAFEWAY - BOD & LPCCC COOKIES 12.00
6040AC PURE GRAIN BAKERY - BOD SANDWICHES 47.85
6040AC PLAYSTATION SONYENTERT - FRAUDULENT

CHARGE
79.97

6040AC PLAYSTATION SONYENTERT - FRAUDULENT
CHARGE

79.97

6040AC PLAYSTATION SONYENTERT - FRAUDULENT
CHARGE

79.97

6040AC PLAYSTATION SONYENTERT - FRAUDULENT
CHARGE REIMBURSED

79.97

6040AC PLAYSTATION SONYENTERT - FRAUDULENT
CHARGE REIMBURSED

79.97

6040AC PLAYSTATION SONYENTERT - FRAUDULENT
CHARGE REIMBURSED

79.97

6040AC REMOTELINK - WESTSIDE IRWMP 32.09
6040AC PURE GRAIN BAKERY - INTERN INTERVIEWS 42.09
6040AC TARGET - SUPPLIES 41.65
1020SC BANK OF THE WEST 232.70

Total 2,257,638.36 2,257,638.36













SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
 

  
810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203 
Vacaville, California 95688  
Phone (707) 451-6090  FAX (707) 451-6099 
www.scwa2.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
           

 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Roland Sanford, General Manager  
 
DATE:   May 6, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  May 2016 General Manager’s Report   
 
 
Water Supply Outlook Continues to Improve 
 
As of this writing Lake Berryessa storage is at 65 percent of capacity -1,037,685 acre-feet - and 
almost identical to what was held in storage a year ago.  The 2016 rainy season is essentially 
over and lake levels are just beginning to decline in response to increased water withdraws.  As 
noted in previous reports, there is currently sufficient water in storage to meet full contractual 
deliveries over the next several years.  Last month I reported that the State had increased North 
Bay Aqueduct allocations by 20 percent, from 40 percent to 60 percent of the full Table A 
amount.  The State has once again increased the North Bay Aqueduct allocation – it is now 75% 
of the full Table amount. 
 
Water Conservation Mandates 
 
On April 20, 2016 the State Water Resources Control Board held an Urban Water Conservation 
Workshop to solicit public input on the emergency water conservation mandates currently in 
place.  The workshop was well attended and there where extensive comments, particularly from 
water purveyors in Northern California, where rainfall was at or above normal for the first time 
in several years.  As of this writing the State Water Resources Control Board has not reacted to 
the comments received, and it is therefore unclear what, if any, relaxing of the current emergency 
water conservation mandates will occur.  However, it now appears unlikely that the State Water 
Resources Control Board will consider adopting the current emergency water conservation 
mandate or some variant of the current mandate as a permanent statewide regulation – at least 
this year. 
 
Speaking of water conservation, I want to congratulate the winners of this year’s 2016 Water 
Awareness Video Contest.  First place went to Leda Brockman of Rodriquez High School in 
Fairfield, second place to Jethro Peralta, also of Rodriquez High School, and third place to 
Angeles-Sofia Rivera and Angelica Mendez of St. Patrick-St. Vincent High School in Vallejo.  A 



record breaking 166 videos were submitted in this year’s contest.  The winning videos can be 
seen at http://solanosaveswater.org. 
 
2016-2017 Budget  
 
Staff is preparing the draft 2016-2017 budget for Board consideration at the June meeting.  Staff 
anticipates closing the 2015-2016 fiscal year slightly under budget, due in part to larger than 
anticipated revenues.  A summary of year end budget projections, by fund, is attached. 
  
Welcome New Hires 
 
Not unlike the annual migration of the Monarch butterflies of San Juan Capistrano, the annual 
migration of summer interns has arrived.  I would like to congratulate our 2016 Lake Berryessa 
summer interns; Su-Lin Terhell, Marianelly Lopez, Yu-Hsuan (Daphne) Wu, Kelsey Swan, Long 
Nguyen, Kevin Young-Lai, Scott Navarro, Gustavo Cruz, Alexander Sweat, Matt Banicki; and 
water conservation interns Chelsea Cullen and Thomas Stoddard – welcome! 
 
Finally, congratulations to Sandra Willingmyre, our new Accountant I.  Sandra is finishing up 
her Masters degree in accounting and has most recently served as the Water Agency’s 
Administrative Assistant.  The Water Agency is currently recruiting for a new Administrative 
Assistant, along with an Assistant Water Resources Specialist.  We anticipate filling these two 
positions by the end of May. 
 
 
 
 
 

http://solanosaveswater.org/


0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

In
flo

w
 in

 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Annual Lake Berryessa Inflow
WY 1983
Average Year
WY 2016
WY 1977



0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

In
flo

w
 in

 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Annual Lake Berryessa Inflow
1977 (Dry)

1983 (Wet)

Average

2016































Time Period Covered:  April 2016 
 
 

REPORT OF CONSTRUCTION CHANGE ORDERS AND 
CONTRACTS APPROVED BY GENERAL MANAGER 

UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
 

 
Construction Contract Change Orders (15% of original project costs 
or $50,000, whichever is less) 
 
 
Construction Contracts ($30,000 and less) 
 
 
 
 
Professional Service Agreements ($30,000 and less) 

   
   

 
Non-Professional Service Agreements ($30,000 and less) 
 
 
 
 
 
Construction contracts resulting from informal bids authorized by SCWA 
Ordinance 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Note:  Cumulative change orders or amendments resulting in exceeding the dollar limit need Board 
approval. 

 
 

Z:\FORMS\Construction Change Orders.doc 
     

   







YOLO BOUNDARY MODIFICATION UPDATE:  
 
The Yolo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District), on behalf of the Water Resources Association of Yolo County 

(WRA) and the Yolo County Farm Bureau (Farm Bureau), has submitted an initial notification to the California Department of Water 

Resources (DWR) to explore a basin boundary modification; pursuant to Section 343.9 of DWR’s Groundwater Basin Boundary 

Regulations. The proposed basin boundary modification is a jurisdictional modification involving a consolidation of the Capay Valley (5-

21.68) and portions of the Colusa (5-21.52), Yolo (5-21.67), and Solano (5-21.66) subbasins that lie within Yolo County and a boundary 

adjustment along the Yolo County line.  The modification would create a new subbasin called the Yolo subbasin, or Yolo Basin. You can 

see the details of this notification on Yolo's groundwater website.  

 
See the attached map for a visual presentation of the proposed changes impacting Solano County/Solano subbasin. Changes include: 

● Modifying the Yolo subbasin near the UC Davis campus. The proposal includes keeping the Solano County portion of the UC 

Davis campus lands within the Yolo subbasin. Other land adjacent to the UC Davis Campus that is in Solano County but 

currently in the Yolo subbasin, will be integrated into the Solano subbasin. 

● Keeping Reclamation Districts 2068 and 2093 wholly within the Solano Subbasin, and not splitting their service areas between 

two different basins. 

● Expanding the Yolo subbasin into some areas currently identified in the Solano subbasin that are within Yolo County. 

The District intends to submit a formal basin boundary modification request to DWR by March 31, 2016. Once the formal request is 

deemed complete by DWR, the public will be given a 30-day public comment period.   

 
Please direct questions or comments regarding the preliminary proposed basin boundary modification to Kristin Sicke at 

ksicke@ycfcwcd.org

 

http://water.ca.gov/groundwater/sgm/basin_boundaries.cfm
http://water.ca.gov/groundwater/sgm/basin_boundaries.cfm
http://yologroundwater.org/index.php/yolo-county-groundwater-basin-boundaries/
http://yologroundwater.org/index.php/yolo-county-groundwater-basin-boundaries/


SOLANO COUNTY WATER AGENCY 

  
810 Vaca Valley Parkway, Suite 203 
Vacaville, California 95688  
Phone (707) 451-6090  FAX (707) 451-6099 
www.scwa2.com 

 
May 12, 2016 
 
Tim O’Halloran, General Manager 
Yolo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
34274 State Highway 16 
Woodland, CA 95695 
 
Subject: Conditional Support for Yolo County Flood Control and Water  
  Conservation District’s Proposed Groundwater Subbasin Boundary 
  Adjustments  
 
Dear Mr. O’Halloran: 
 
The Solano County Water Agency (SCWA) recognizes that much like Solano 
County, groundwater is a vital resource in Yolo County.  Current groundwater 
management activities in Yolo County encompass all or part of four subbasins 
identified in the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin No. 
118: Colusa (5-21.52), Solano (5-21.66), Yolo (5-21.67), and Capay Valley (5-
21.68) subbasins.     
 
SCWA is aware of the Yolo County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District’s (District) proposal to the California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) to modify and consolidate the basin boundaries associated with the 
Yolo (5-21.67), Capay Valley (5-21.68), and portions of the Colusa (5-21.52) 
and Solano (5-21.66) subbasins.  In the case of the Solano subbasin, which is 
largely located within Solano County, the District is proposing to adjust the 
subbasin boundary to more closely align with the Solano-Yolo county 
boundary. 
 
SCWA conditionally supports and recommends DWR’s approval of the 
proposed boundary adjustments as submitted by the District, with the 
expectation that pursuant to the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act, the District will work closely with both Solano and Sacramento counties to 
develop a robust groundwater management coordinating agreement between the 
groundwater governance entities that are ultimately created to manage 
groundwater resources in the Solano and adjacent groundwater subbasins. 

  
Sincerely, 

 
 

Roland Sanford 
General Manager 

 
A-70.YCFCWCD.BasinBoundary.SupportLetter 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
Chair: 
Supervisor Erin Hannigan 
Solano County District 1 
 
Vice Chair: 
Mayor Pete Sanchez 
City of Suisun City 
 
Mayor Len Augustine 
City of Vacaville 
 
Mayor Jack Batchelor 
City of Dixon 
 
Director Dale Crossley 
Reclamation District No. 2068 
 
Mayor Osby Davis  
City of Vallejo 
 
Director John D. Kluge 
Solano Irrigation District 
 
Director Ryan Mahoney  
Maine Prairie Water District 
 
Mayor Elizabeth Patterson 
City of Benicia 
 
Mayor Harry Price 
City of Fairfield 
 
Mayor Norm Richardson 
City of Rio Vista 
 
Supervisor Linda Seifert 
Solano County District 2 
 
Supervisor Jim Spering  
Solano County District 3 
 
Supervisor Skip Thomson 
Solano County District 5 
 
Supervisor John Vasquez 
Solano County District 4 
 
 
GENERAL MANAGER: 
 
Roland Sanford 
Solano County Water Agency 
 
 
 



Evaluation of Yolo Groundwater Basin Boundary Modification 
 

Solano County Department of Resource Management April 28, 2016 Page 1 
 

Basin Boundary Modification Application - The Yolo County Water Resource Agencies (WRA)1 
submitted an application to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) to consolidate 
four separate groundwater subbasins within Yolo County into a single “Yolo Subbasin” that mostly 
conforms to the Yolo County boundary lines.  DWR deemed this application complete on April 15, 
2016 and a 30-day comment period is now open prior to DWR accepting the application.  The 
application, including a map of the proposed basin boundaries and supporting information, can be 
found on DWR’s website2.   

This proposal is a jurisdictional modification of boundary lines intended to promote sustainable 
groundwater management by building on the existing structure of the WRA and by improving 
efficiency between land use planning and water resources management in Yolo County. 

Figure 1 is an illustration modified from a WRA presentation depicting the subbasins regulated 
under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act in Yolo, Solano and Colusa Counties before 
and after the proposed basin boundary modification.  Figure 2 provides a close up of the boundary 
line between the Yolo and Solano Subbasins before and after the proposed boundary modification.  
 
GROUNDWATER CONDITIONS 
 
Groundwater management is currently conducted by entities within their jurisdictions regardless of 
subbasin boundary. Through the DWR California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring 
(CASGEM) program, Solano County Water Agency (SCWA) is the groundwater management 
entity in Solano County, and WRA manages groundwater throughout Yolo County, including in the 
Solano Subbasin area of Yolo County.  
 
The area proposed to be added into the Solano Subbasin consists largely of agricultural lands that 
rely heavily on groundwater and that have been the subject of several regional groundwater 
studies3. Based on available information, groundwater conditions in the area appear stable. 
Groundwater elevations fluctuate in response to wet and dry years, but do not exhibit long-term 
downward trends.  
 
The area east of Solano County in the Solano Subbasin that is proposed to be added into the new 
Yolo Subbasin also is largely utilized for agricultural purposes. However, most of the irrigation 
water in this area is obtained from surface water sources, which is readily available through 
various water purveyors. Although limited, publicly available groundwater elevation data strongly 
suggest that groundwater conditions in this region are also stable. 
 
Based on groundwater level monitoring conducted through CASGEM, groundwater in the vicinity of 
the University of California, Davis and the Solano Subbasin area of Yolo County generally flows to 
the southeast, toward the Sacramento River. Therefore, areas in the Yolo County portion of the 
Solano Subbasin are considered down gradient from Solano County. Figure 3 illustrates the 
general groundwater flow direction within the Solano Subbasin portion of Solano County. 

                                                           
1 Yolo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, on behalf of the Water Resources Association of Yolo County (WRA) and 
the Yolo County Farm Bureau. 
 
2 DWR Basin Boundary Modification http://sgma.water.ca.gov/basinmod/basinrequest/preview/55 
 
3 Studies conducted by USGS (1960), DWR (1992 and 1994), and SCWA (2014) 

http://sgma.water.ca.gov/basinmod/basinrequest/preview/55


Evaluation of Yolo Groundwater Basin Boundary Modification 
 

Solano County Department of Resource Management April 28, 2016 Page 2 
 

The aquifers in the Yolo and Solano subbasins are connected and surface water recharges 
aquifers in both subbasins. A soil agricultural groundwater banking index4 (SAGBI) map developed 
by the California Soil Resource Laboratory at the University of California, Davis identifies soils 
suitable for groundwater recharge. Figure 4 illustrates the soils mapped in Solano County that 
have potential to recharge groundwater aquifer systems.  This map shows the areas north of Dixon 
along the Yolo/Solano county line and along the south fork of Putah Creek extending into Yolo 
County as having good to excellent recharge potential. Areas along the Sacramento deep water 
ship channel in the Solano subbasin were ranked “poor”. The SAGBI index website: 
http://casoilresource.lawr.ucdavis.edu/sagbi/ 

If DWR approves the proposed basin boundary modification, the Solano Subbasin will gain areas 
along the south fork of Putah Creek that may increase potential groundwater recharge for Solano 
County aquifers. With the exception of an area near the south fork of Putah Creek in Yolo County, 
the majority of soils in the Yolo County portion of the Solano Subbasin have poor recharge 
potential.  

AFFECTED AREAS  

WRA’s boundary modification proposal affects the northeastern portion of Solano County, near UC 
Davis, in the Yolo Subbasin and the Yolo County portion of the Solano Subbasin in the following 
manner:  

Solano County - Unincorporated property near UC Davis (just to the east of the south campus 
lands) within Solano County is currently in the Yolo Subbasin. The WRA modification would add 
these properties to the Solano Subbasin. The UC Davis campus properties in Solano County 
would remain in the Yolo Subbasin.  

 
Yolo County - Property in the eastern portion of the Solano Subbasin in Yolo County would be 
incorporated into the new Yolo Subbasin, except for land within the boundaries of reclamation 
districts (RDs) RD 2068, 2093, 999, 307 and 150, which have requested to remain in the Solano 
Subbasin. RDs in the Delta region, including RDs 999, 307, and 150, have indicated they are 
exploring forming their own Northern Delta GSA.   

The proposed modification would result in the following benefits and areas of concern: 

1) Extension of the Solano Subbasin into the Yolo Subbasin within northeastern Solano 
County.  

• Benefit  
o The Solano subbasin will gain lands currently in the Yolo Subbasin along the South 

Fork of Putah Creek that have a high potential for groundwater recharge, which will 
benefit the Solano Subbasin aquifers.  
 

o Agricultural land currently within the Yolo Subbasin will now be regulated by a GSA for 
the Solano Subbasin.  

 
• Concern - The U.C. Davis Campus within Solano County will continue to remain in the Yolo 

Subbasin.   

                                                           
4 Soil Agricultural Groundwater Banking Index http://casoilresource.lawr.ucdavis.edu/sagbi/ 

http://casoilresource.lawr.ucdavis.edu/sagbi/
http://casoilresource.lawr.ucdavis.edu/sagbi/


Evaluation of Yolo Groundwater Basin Boundary Modification 
 

Solano County Department of Resource Management April 28, 2016 Page 3 
 

 
o Mitigation – Coordination agreements will be needed with Yolo County, WRA, and 

U.C. Davis to coordinate management of adjacent subbasins.  

2) Extension of the Yolo Subbasin into the existing eastern portion of the Solano Subbasin.  

• Benefit  
o The proposal will retain the existing groundwater management of these areas, to which 

the local farmers and RCD are accustomed.  
 

o The proposal will allow for future GSA formation and subbasin boundary modification by 
the proposed Northern Delta GSA.    

 
• Concerns   

o Minor concerns include losing a small potential groundwater recharge area along the 
south fork of Putah Creek, just east of the Solano County border.  
 

o Solano agencies may lose some ability to ensure that groundwater management in the 
existing eastern portion of the Solano Subbasin is adequately coordinated with the 
remaining portion of the Solano Subbasin.  
 

o Dixon RCD service area is bisected.  
 
 Mitigations  

• WRA and Yolo County are willing to enter into agreements to coordinate 
management of these adjacent subbasins.  

• Most of the areas downgradient of Solano County, including the existing 
eastern portion of the Solano Subbasin, have not been identified as 
having high recharge potential for groundwater. 

• The Dixon RCD board supports the modification. 

Submitting Comments – Comments and documents to support, oppose, or remain neutral on the 
proposed basin boundary modification must be submitted during the 30-day comment period to the 
DWR website5.  Support or opposition of the proposed modification from a local agency must 
include either a resolution from the decision making body or a letter signed by the executive officer 
or official with appropriate delegated authority, and must include similar scientific and technical 
information as the boundary modification request.   

Other Agency Involvement – Of the agencies within Solano County and the existing Solano 
Subbasin, the Northern Delta GSA and UC Davis have each submitted letters of support, which 
are included in the WRA’s basin boundary modification application.   On April 13, 2016, Dixon RCD 
board voted to submit a letter of support to DWR.  Staff from the Solano RCD indicated that they 
support the proposed basin boundary modification.   

                                                           
5 DWR Website http://sgma.water.ca.gov/basinmod/basinrequest/preview/55 
  

http://sgma.water.ca.gov/basinmod/basinrequest/preview/55


Evaluation of Yolo Groundwater Basin Boundary Modification 
 

Solano County Department of Resource Management April 28, 2016 Page 4 
 

  

       

 

 

      

  

Figure 1: Existing Groundwater Subbasins before and after proposed basin boundary 
modification (modified from WRA presentation). 

 

Existing Subbasin Boundary Lines Proposed Subbasin Boundary Lines 



Evaluation of Yolo Groundwater Basin Boundary Modification 
 

Solano County Department of Resource Management April 28, 2016 Page 5 
 

 

 

Existing Groundwater Subbasin Proposed Groundwater Subbasin Modification 

 

 
 

 

Figure 3: General Groundwater Flow Direction in the Solano Subbasin. 

 

 

 

Figure 2: Close up of subbasin boundary lines between the Yolo and Solano 
Subbasins before and after the Yolo Subbasin Boundary modification. 



Evaluation of Yolo Groundwater Basin Boundary Modification 
 

Solano County Department of Resource Management April 28, 2016 Page 6 
 

Figure 4: Map of Solano County showing soils that are suitable for groundwater recharge 
based on the Soil Agricultural Groundwater Banking Index (SAGBI), developed by the 

California Soil Resource Laboratory at the University of California, Davis. 

 

 

 

 


	May.2016.bod.agd (ID 194798)
	CONSENT ITEMS (ID 185138)
	Apr.2016.BOD.min (ID 194270)
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	May.2016.It5B (ID 195121)
	May.2016.It5B_Report (ID 194940)
	May.2016.It5C (ID 195122)
	May.2016.It5C_Dixon Agreement (ID 194609)
	May.2016.It7 (ID 195117)
	May.2016.It7_attachment (ID 194911)
	Copy of S-12C Lake Berryessa Inflow - Averages
	Copy of S-12C Lake Berryessa Inflow - Averages 2

	May.2016.It7_YEAR END PROJECTION (ID 194805)
	May.2016.It7_Construction Change orders (ID 194859)
	May.2016.It8 (ID 195123)
	May.2016.It8.YoloBoundaryHandout (ID 194804)
	May.2016.It8.YCFCWD Support Letter (ID 193772)
	May.2016.It8.BackgroundReport (ID 195119)



